THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

RECEIVED

In The Court of Appeals

DEC 04 2020

SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM EDGEFIELD COUNTY

Circuit Court

Honorable Alison Renee Lee, Chief Administrative Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2016-CP-19-00141

Appellate Case No. 2019-001428

Rufus Lyndell Griffin,

Appellant

v.

Thomas Mosley, Quinnie Mosley, Walter Mosley,
Timothy Mosley, and Paquita Mosley, Individually and
as Personal Representative of the Estate of Ellec Mosley,

Respondents

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Rufus L. Griffin, pro se
313 Fifth Avenue
McCormick, SC 29835
Phone: 864-852-2163

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal from a judgment entered by Judge Allison R. Lee, Administrative Judge of the Fifth Judicial Circuit, presiding in Edgefield County Circuit Court, the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, on the date of hearing held on March 18, 2019. The circuit court, on July 9, 2019, issued an Order in favor of the Respondents, granting the dismissal of Appellant's complaint on grounds of improper jurisdiction of the circuit court. Appellant, pursuant to Rule 72 SCRCP and Rule 201 SCACR acts upon his right to appeal the decision of the lower court. Therefore, jurisdiction in this Court is properly invoked.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

Appellant, pursuant to Rule 72 SCRCF and Rule 208 (b) SCACR, submits his appeal before the Court of Appeals with the following questions for review:

1. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN ISSUANCE OF AN ORDER THAT IS TECHNICALLY AND LEGALLY FLAWED?
2. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN MISSTATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS AND BY APPLYING A LEGAL STANDARD THAT WAS NOT APPLICABLE TO CASE FACTS?
3. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN DISMISSING APPELLANT'S COMPLAINT AGAINST MULTIPLE RESPONDENTS BASED ON THE MOTION OF ONE RESPONDENT, THEREBY CEDING JURISDICTION TO A LOWER PROBATE COURT WHERE THE OTHER RESPONDENTS WERE NEVER PARTIES?
4. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN ALLOWING RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS WHEN IT SHOULD HAVE BEEN BARRED BY DOCTRINE OF RES JUDICATA?
5. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN ITS NONADHERANCE TO CIRCUIT COURT STANDARDS ACCORDING TO S.C. CODE ANN. § 14-5-10, 14-17-510, AND 14-17-570? AND DOES THIS ACTION PROMOTE A PERCEPTION OF BIAS?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case

This appeal arises from the circuit court's July 9, 2019 Order dismissing Appellant's Complaint originally submitted in December 2015, and Amended Complaint of February 2016, on jurisdictional grounds. The circuit court decided, upon a third Motion to Dismiss from Respondent, to cede its jurisdiction of the civil case to a lower probate court. (R. p.1).

Appellant raises a litany of issues in this appeal: The July 9, 2019 circuit court Order (Order) is technically flawed, whereas its captioning does not match the case record on which it has ruled, making it incapable of representing all case parties, nor recognizing each in their original capacity. The Order further contains misstatement of material facts of the case, that resulted in apparent inconsistency in the final ruling. This Order granting dismissal of Appellant's civil case also contradicted the court's prior two rulings upholding its jurisdiction by heeding to Respondent's third Motion to Dismiss on the same grounds, without any substantial change in information or law, an action that should have been barred altogether per premise of Res Judicata.

MOREOVER, Appellant has further concern pertaining to the handling of his case record by the circuit court, which was not in keeping with the standards of S.C. Code Ann. § 14-5-10, 14-17-510, AND 14-17-570. Therefore, it is Appellant's sincere intention that upon review of this appeal, this Court would set aside or Reverse the judgement of the circuit court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

B. Procedural History

On December 10, 2015, Appellant Rufus L. Griffin (Plaintiff) filed a civil suit in the County of Richland (Fifth Judicial Circuit), and an Amended Complaint on February 16, 2016 (Amended Complaint). Individual Respondents to the suit are Paquita Mosley, Timothy Mosley, Thomas Mosley, Betty Mosley, Quinnie Mosley and Walter Mosley. Appellant alleged that the six (6) Respondents entered a conspiracy to deplete financial accounts and gain property Appellant had been given or shared jointly with his father, Ellec Mosley. Appellant argued that a vast amount of funds, held in joint bank accounts with his father had been fraudulently taken through the independent and coordinated efforts of the Respondents between July 2012 and December 2012. When Mr. Ellec Mosley eventually died on December 2, 2012, he died virtually penniless and all accounts he shared with Appellant were also depleted.

As the July 9, 2019 Circuit Court Order granting Respondent's Motion to Dismiss was solely on the grounds of jurisdiction of the Probate Court and a pending action within that court 'between the same parties', Appellant must now provide a brief summary of the probate case now that it has been referenced:

On December 28, 2012, Appellant, Rufus L. Griffin, filed a Petition in the Probate Court of Edgefield County for Formal Appointment as Personal Representative of Ellec Mosley's estate as decedent's son. This Petition listed Respondents as Paquita Mosley (Appellant's half-sister) and Timothy Mosley (Appellant's cousin), due to both previously claiming to be Power of Attorneys for

the decedent. No response was ever filed by Timothy Mosley. Respondent, Paquita Mosley, filed a Co-Petition on February 12, 2013, simultaneously challenging the paternity of Rufus L. Griffin.

The probate court appointed a Temporary Personal Representative (PR), to investigate the financial assets of the decedent, who issued his Interim Report in October 2013 to the court. The Probate Court did not find these financial assets or questionable activities to be matters of the estate or actionable by the Probate Court and thereby a final Court Order and Memorandum was issued September 29, 2014. This Order upheld Petitioner Paquita Mosley as child and heir of decedent while applying an improper standard in its adverse decision on Rufus Griffin's paternity.

On November 13, 2014, Appellant, Rufus Griffin, appealed the probate judgement. The Edgefield County Circuit Court ruled that the probate court had indeed applied an improper standard of law, pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. 62-2-109(2)ii)(Supp.2014). It's November 12, 2015 ruling then 'Reversed and Remanded' the probate decision and limited future probate litigation to paternity. (R. pp. 15-16)

On December 15, 2015, the Supreme Court of South Carolina disqualified and recused the Edgefield County Probate Court judges. Since then, other county probate court judges have been appointed, but since requested recusal. The most recent appointment, on February 15, 2018, was the Greenwood County Probate Court. As of this date, there has been no notice of hearing or status update for the 'Reverse and Remand' Order of the circuit court.

The matters of the civil action now before the Court of Appeals are as follows:

Appellant's civil suit includes six (6) previously named Respondents. On February 12, 2016, Respondent Paquita Mosley filed an Answer to Appellant's Complaint, including Respondent's first Motion to Dismiss Appellant's Complaint on grounds of improper venue and improper jurisdiction of the circuit court. A 'jury trial' was also demanded. This motion contained a Cross Claim against Respondent Thomas Mosley, accusing him of negligence in his duties as attorney for decedent, Ellec Mosley, and placing blame on him for any alleged losses sustained by Appellant, and any future findings of blame that might be placed on her. (R. pp. 17-21: Answer, Cross Complaint, Motion - p. 4-5 (#78), p.6 (#85), & p. 8 (Prayer(a))).

Respondent Thomas Mosley, an attorney and resident of the county of Richland, through his counsel, filed a Motion to Change Venue to Edgefield County and a Motion to Dismiss Appellant's Complaint. On May 18, 2016, the Richland County Circuit Court granted the Motion for Change of Venue to Edgefield County for continued litigation and trial, denying Respondents' Motions to Dismiss. (R. pp. 22-24).

The matter then moved before the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, Edgefield County, regarding for the most part, funds which had been in the form of five (5) 'certificate of deposit' (CD) accounts valued over \$50,000.00, and one Payable On Death (POD) account (with Appellant Griffin as joint owner of the CD's and beneficiary of the POD). The five CD accounts had been solely in the names of Ellec Mosley and Rufus Griffin, as joint ('or') owners since 2008. Appellant's half-sister, Respondent Paquita Mosley, also shared five (5) CD accounts with Ellec Mosley of

the same value. None of the Respondents have declared the 5 CD accounts shared jointly by Respondent Paquita Mosley and Ellec Mosley as probate assets requiring probate court action. In fact, Paquita Mosley, has had unfettered access to and benefited from the CD accounts she shared with the decedent before and after his death. However, Appellant's Complaint alleges that one or more of the Respondents improperly accessed the accounts that Appellant shared jointly with Ellec Mosley within the five (5) months preceding Ellec Mosley's December 2012 death, and absconded with the funds, through physical and electronic transactions, via illegal and ethically questionable means while Appellant was unaware.

On November 7, 2016, oral arguments were heard in the civil case in the venue of Edgefield County. Two Respondents, Timothy Mosley and Walter Mosley, submitted a Motion to Dismiss (October 27, 2016) via their counsel, and argued 1) statute of limitations and 2) improper jurisdiction of the Circuit Court. These Respondents' Motion further affirmed that matters of the Complaint before the civil court '*occurred in the months of July and August 2012, and concerns matters of a deceased person, one Ellec Mosley, who passed life on December 2, 2012*' and claimed that '*plaintiff seeks relief which is improper in this (circuit court) forum*'. (R. pp. 25-26.)

During oral arguments on November 7, 2016, the Circuit Court recognized that the referenced bank accounts, although jointly owned by Appellant and his father, were no different than joint bank funds owned by unrelated persons and equally subject to recovery via civil suit. Appellant argued that not only did

Respondents Paquita Mosley and Timothy Mosley access accounts that were not legally theirs to access, but Respondents utilized a Power of Attorney (POA) document that had been improperly witnessed, created by and facilitated by Respondent Thomas Mosley and improperly witnessed by his wife, Respondent Betty Mosley. Appellant's Complaint further alleged that the improperly gained funds also flowed through accounts owned by other Respondents, Walter Mosley and Quinnie Mosley.

Respondent, Paquita Mosley and her counsel, were present during the November 2016 hearing and joined Defendants Motion to Dismiss on the grounds of improper jurisdiction of the circuit court. (R. pp. 27-30: Transcript, p.22, lines 23-24).

The court stated, on November 7, 2016 during oral arguments, presided by the Honorable Jocelyn Newman: "*Griffin also alleges that he was the son of Ellec, but I don't see that being tied to his claim of fraud or misrepresentation or civil conspiracy as to these CD's and deeds. As I mentioned earlier and asked about it, it appears to me to be incidental to that.*" (R. pp 27-30: Transcript, p. 30, lines 2-6). The circuit court, ruled on November 7, 2016 that Plaintiff (Appellant) Griffin's complaint had not only met the statute of limitations guidelines, but was in the proper jurisdiction of the circuit court and denied the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss: "*Saying all that, I am going to deny the motion to dismiss.*" (R. pp. 27-30: Transcript, p. 30, lines 13-14). The Court further acted upon Plaintiff's Motion to Compel and Motion of Contempt against Defendants and reminded and ordered all

Defendants to comply with Plaintiff's discovery requests. (R. pp. 27-30: Transcript, p. 32, lines 5-15).

During that time, on December 15, 2016 the Supreme Court appointee, Lexington County Probate Court judge, proceeded with the Reversed and Remanded probate case at hand, appropriately limiting it to the issue of paternity between Respondent Paquita Mosley and Appellant.

On January 10, 2017, Appellant filed a Motion to Compel against Respondent Paquita Mosley and Quinnie Mosley, and a Motion of Contempt against Thomas Mosley, Walter Mosley, Timothy Mosley and Betty Mosley, reminding the court that the Defendants had not yet complied with the Court's oral order of November 7, 2016 to comply with discovery. To this date, all Respondents still have not complied and the Circuit Court has taken no further action.

On February 18, 2019, Respondent (Paquita Mosley) filed a Motion to Compel discovery of Griffin and a Motion to Dismiss on the basis that the civil case lacks the ability to proceed as long as other actions between the Parties are pending in probate court.

On March 18, 2019, the Edgefield County Court of Common Pleas, presided by Judge Alison Lee, heard Respondent Paquita Mosley's Motion to Dismiss. Besides Appellant, no other Respondents appeared. Counsel for Respondent Paquita Mosley, moved for case dismissal in part on grounds of Appellant's noncompliance with discovery requests. However, Appellant had offered access to discovery which Respondent chose not to act upon for months and opted to instead file a Motion to

Compel. The opposing Motion to Compel and Motion for Contempt filed by Appellant in 2017 was also never acted upon by the court, which equally denied Appellant full discovery from Respondents. Therefore, in the final July 9, 2019 Order, the lower court regarded the issue of discovery as 'moot' and focused instead on jurisdiction. The Edgefield County Circuit Court, on July 9, 2019, granted Respondent's Motion to Dismiss citing jurisdiction of a lower probate court.

On August 1, 2019, Appellant received written notice of the entry of the said Order via certified U.S. Mail and timely served his Notice of Appeal, August 26, 2019, on all six Respondents of the case and the clerk of the lower court.

On December 27, 2019, Appellant filed a Motion to Vacate Order pursuant to his rights afforded under Rule 60, SCACR. The SC Court of Appeals denied the Motion on March 27, 2020. Therefore, Appellant proceeds with his appeal before this Court as instructed by the Court.

ARGUMENTS

- I. BECAUSE THE LOWER COURT ISSUED AN ORDER IMPROPERLY CAPTIONED, ALTERING THE RELATIONSHIP OF CASE PARTIES AND EXCLUDING ONE PARTY OF THE ORIGINAL CASE, THE ORDER IS TECHNICALLY FLAWED AND LEGALLY INVALID.

The lower court on July 9, 2019, issued its Order granting Defendant's Motion to Dismiss. It was captioned as follows:

“Thomas Mosley, Quinnie Mosley, Walter Mosley, Timothy Mosley, and Paquita Mosley, *Individually and as Personal Representative of the Estate of Ellec Mosley*”.

(Order: cover page)

Appellant's case, of which the July 9, 2019 Order is pertaining, accurately reflects all (6) six Respondents and in their rightful capacities as:

“Thomas Mosley, *Individual*; Paquita Mosley, *Individual*; Timothy Mosley, *Individual*; Quinnie Mosley, *Individual*; Walter Mosley, *Individual*; Betty Mosley, *Individual*; Paquita Mosley, *as Personal Representative of the Estate of Ellec Mosley*.”

(Amended Complaint (cover pg.), Order (cover pg.))

Appellant brings to the Court's attention the following captioning discrepancies:

1. The caption of the lower court's July 9, 2019 Order excludes Respondent Betty Mosley, who has been a Respondent since 2016 and has not, at any time prior to this omission been given relief by the court.
2. The caption of the July 9, 2019 Order improperly re-titled each Respondent.

The lower court did not distinguish each Respondent individually but

presented all five defendants with a shared title of: '*Individually and as Personal Representative of the Estate of Ellec Mosley*', which they are not.

The SC Court of Appeals alerted Appellant of the discrepancies in a letter dated November 26, 2019, (R. p. 31), which advised Appellant that the title of his Appeal and any future submissions to the Appellant Court should be changed to match the titling of the lower court Order. This, of course, limited Appellant's progress in the appeal to information inconsistent with the civil case record.

There is but one Personal Representative of the probate case, which is Respondent, Paquita Mosley. There is but one other party to that case, which is Appellant, Rufus Lyndell Griffin. Appellant contends that it is not proper for the circuit court to list or title all other Defendants as 'Personal Representative' of a case of which none ever petitioned and to which none were ever parties. As it stands, there is no pending litigation in the probate court other than the Reverse and Remand that limits the appealed probate court case to the lingering matter of paternity between Appellant and Paquita Mosley. Therefore, the July 9, 2019 Order, haphazardly captioning all parties of the civil case as probate case 'Personal Representative', gives an unsettling appearance that the court seeks to now introduce and interject other parties into a case of which they have no history of participation, no formal petition, nor involvement.

For these reasons, Appellant submitted his Motion to Vacate the lower court Order to the Court of Appeals on December 27, 2019 pursuant to Rule 60, SCACR, which states: “*On motion and upon such terms as are just, the court may relieve a party or his legal representative from a final judgment, order*’ even from ‘*mistakes, inadvertence or excusable neglect*’. It is clear that the captioning alone makes this lower court Order a clear candidate of Rule 60b, but Appellant’s Motion was denied on March 27, 2020, forcing the defective Order into appeal, nonetheless. In compliance with proceeding into appeal with a defective lower court Order, Appellant’s procedural due process rights against the omitted Respondent have been compromised, as that Respondent is now removed from the legal chain that ties the appeal to the circuit court case.

STANDARD OF REVIEW:

The Court should review the action of the Circuit Court under the Clearly Erroneous Standard, which permits the reversal of any decision by the lower court if the error was evident, obvious, and clear; and if the error also resulted in prejudice to Appellant’s position. The Court should determine whether a circuit court Order should be upheld if it is technically flawed and legally inaccurate to a point that improperly removes a Respondent from the case without purpose or established leave. With the removal of a party in error, Appellant questions whether his rights are fully served in appeal, and whether the rights of the party who has now been restricted from the appeal is truly protected.

II. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN DISMISSING APPELLANT'S COMPLAINT AGAINST MULTIPLE RESPONDENTS BASED ON THE MOTION OF ONE RESPONDENT, THEREBY WRONGLY CEDING JURISDICTION TO A LOWER PROBATE COURT WHERE THE OTHER RESPONDENTS WERE NON-PARTIES AND APPELLANT CANNOT PURSUE MATTERS OF HIS CIVIL COMPLAINT.

The decision by the Edgefield County Court of Common Pleas, in its July 9, 2019 Order granting dismissal of Appellant's case solely on the merits of Respondent Paquita Mosley's Motion to Dismiss, also, to the legal detriment of Appellant, consequently and finitely dismissed Appellant's entire case and complaint against five (5) other Respondents: Thomas Mosley, Timothy Mosley, Walter Mosley, Quinnie Mosley and Betty Mosley.

As these other Respondents were not Parties to the referenced 2012 probate case, and never filed Petitions for Formal Appointment in the Edgefield County Probate Court at any time, and have no bearing on Appellant's 2015 appealed decision on paternity, it is therefore not reasonable to assume that Appellant can freely pursue civil action against these outside individuals within the jurisdiction of the Probate Court.

STANDARD OF REVIEW:

The Court should review the circuit court judgement under an Abuse of Discretion Standard as it appears that a clear error of judgment has been made. Appellate asks the Court to consider whether the action of the lower court, upon relinquishing its jurisdiction per Motion of one Defendant, constitutes an abuse of

discretion as it pertains to the rights of Appellant. The Circuit Court's action has left Appellant with no appropriate Court in which to litigate his claims, as he is unable to continue his civil litigation against the other Defendants in a lower probate court where they are non-parties.

III. BECAUSE THE LEGAL STANDARD USED WAS NOT APPLICABLE AND THE FACTS PRESENTED BY THE CIRCUIT COURT ARE MISSTATED AND INACCURATE, THE DECISION REACHED BY THE TRIAL COURT IS IMPROPER, PURSUANT TO SC CODE OF JUDICIAL CONDUCT § 501 PREAMBLE.

Respondent (Defendant), Paquita Mosley, sought dismissal of Appellant's (Plaintiff's) Complaint on the basis that another action between the parties is pending in probate court. On July 9, 2019 the circuit court ruled against Appellant, dismissing Appellant's Complaint against six named Defendants, using this legal standard: '*A Defendant may move for dismissal of an action pursuant to Rule 12(b)(8), SCRPC when another action is pending between the same parties for the same claim*'. The court cited authorities which noted '*that the claim must either be substantially or precisely the same as in the other action*'. (R. pp. 1-4: Order, p. 2, ¶ 1)

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