RECEIVED

Apr 05 2021

SC Court of Appeals

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

Case No. 2019-001428

APPEAL FROM EDGEFIELD COUNTY

Court of Common Pleas
Alison Renee Lee, Chief Administrative Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2016-CP-19-00141

Rufus Lyndell Griffin,

Appellant

v.

Thomas Mosley, Quinnie Mosley,
Walter Mosley, Timothy Mosley,
And Paquita Mosley, Individually and
as Personal Representative
of the Estate of Ellec Mosley,

Respondents

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT PAQUITA MOSLEY

Rachel A. Dain, Esq.
SCBar#: 12786
810 Dutch Square Blvd, Suite 215
Columbia, SC 29210-7318
(803) 256-6661
Rachael@AttorneyDain.com

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

ARGUMENT

- A. CLERICAL ERRORS IN A CASE CAPTION DO NOT INVALIDATE A COURT ORDER AND THE LOWER COURT'S ORDER OF DISMISSAL WAS PROPER DESPITE THE ACCIDENTAL OMISSION OF A PARTIES' NAME AND APPELLANT'S INTERPRETATION OF THE RESPONDENTS' DESIGNATION IN THE CASE CAPTION.

Respondent begins by pointing out Appellant's argument of this issue revolves around his assertion that a technical defect in a court filing should nullify its legal affect pursuant to Rule 60, SCACR. First, Appellant cites the incorrect rule as no Rule 60 exists under the Appellate Court Rules. Second, under the premise of his argument, Appellant's own Initial Brief, and therefore his appeal, should be dismissed based upon the clerical error he created by transposing the order of Issue Statements II and III in the Arguments section of his brief. This defect resulted in two of Appellant's arguments being improperly ordered and matched to his Statement of Issues on Appeal.

Appellant argues that a technical defect by way of an accidental omission of a Respondent's name from the case caption and his interpretation that the language used in the caption incorrectly identified the parties such that he alleges it alters their legal status should constitute grounds to invalidate the entire Order of Dismissal issued by Judge Lee on July 9, 2019.

This issue of an omission of a party in the caption raised by Appellant amounts to the presence of a clerical error in the case caption, which can be corrected upon motion of any party pursuant to Rule 60(a), SCRCP¹. No motion to correct the case caption

¹ Rule 60(a), SCRCP states that "[c]lerical mistakes in judgments, orders or other parts of the record and errors therein arising from oversight or omission may be corrected by the court at any time of its own initiative or on the motion of any party and after such notice, if any, as the court orders. During the pendency of an appeal, leave to correct the mistake must be obtained from the appellate court."

has been filed by Appellant to date, nor has Appellant availed himself of the relief available to him by making this request to the Court of Appeals. Rather, Appellant is improperly proffering a legal argument in an attempt to invalidate a final order over a correctable error.

The issue Appellant raises as to the legal status of the parties being altered to indicate they are all listed as personal representatives of the estate of Ellec Mosley is unfounded as it rests on his personal interpretation of the wording used and does not indicate any change in the parties' legal status in the case. The case caption with respect to Respondents clearly places Paquita Mosley at the end of the list of Respondents and the designation of "Personal Representative" is singular, not plural, indicating she is the sole Personal Representative of the estate.

Pursuant to Rule 61, SCRCF, "no error or defect in any ruling or order or in anything done or omitted by the court or by any of the parties is ground for granting a new trial or for setting aside a verdict or for vacating, modifying or otherwise disturbing a judgment or order The court at every stage of the proceeding must disregard any error or defect in the proceeding which does not affect the substantial rights of the parties." Because clerical errors in the case caption do not affect the substantial rights of Appellant who has failed to properly request the relief available to him under the law to correct the issue, the Trial Court's Order of Dismissal is proper and valid and Respondent would argue that this claim is frivolous pursuant to Rule 269, SCACR. ²

² Rule 269, SCACR states that [w]here an appeal, petition, motion or return is frivolous or taken solely for the purposes of delay, or is not in compliance with these Rules, the appellate court may upon its own motion or that of a party, after ten (10) days notice, impose upon offending attorneys or parties such sanctions as the circumstances of the case and discouragement of like conduct in the future may require. This Rule does not apply to any matters where counsel is required by law to pursue an appeal or petition for writ of certiorari even though the matter may be frivolous.

B. THE LOWER COURT WAS PROPER IN DISMISSING APPELLANT'S COMPLAINT AGAINST ALL RESPONDENTS BECAUSE IT LACKED SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION OVER A PROBATE MATTER AND BECAUSE DISCOVERY SANCTIONS WERE PROPER PURSUANT TO RULE 37(B)(2)(C), SCRPC.

Throughout the life of Appellant's case, dismissal based on lack of subject matter jurisdiction has been periodically raised. At a hearing on November 7, 2016, the court declined to grant Respondent's Motion to Dismiss despite acknowledging that the property's legal status was yet to be determined as non-probate, may be determined at a later date, and that a probate action was pending (R __, p. 29, L. 23-25; p. 30, L.7-13),³ involving the disposition of estate assets and paternity of Appellant directly affecting his inheritance rights to estate property, which all Respondents maintain the assets in question are.

Another hearing occurred on February 18, 2019, after which Judge Lee, taking the current facts and evidence into consideration, made a determination based on Appellant's failure to provide sufficient evidence that the assets he complained of were non-probate, and therefore issued an Order granting Respondent's Motion to Dismiss (R 1, pp. 1-3)⁴ stating that the Lower Court did not have subject matter jurisdiction over the case and that the Probate Court action was the proper arena. The South Carolina Probate Code confers exclusive original jurisdiction to the probate court over all subject matter relating to estates of decedents. S.C. Code Ann. § 62-1-302 (1987).

³ The transcript pages requested from the November 7, 2016 hearing were not included in the Record on Appeal.

Respondents shared a common interest⁵ in the litigation regarding the assets at the root of Appellant's Lower Court case because Respondents all claimed those assets to be probate property belonging solely to the legal heirs of decedent, Ellec Mosley. The Common Interest Doctrine would have extended rights of privilege to all Respondents allowing them to share any information obtained through the discovery process. As such, Respondent Paquita Mosley would have been able to provide any discovery responses and documentation produced by Appellant to her co-parties for purposes of effectively formulating a joint defense to Appellant's claims.

Appellant's failure to comply with Judge Lee's Order at the March 19, 2019 hearing compelling him to provide discovery responses to Respondent herein deprived all Respondents of the ability to defend themselves against Appellant's claims.

As a matter of law, it was within Judge Lee's discretion to sanction Appellant under Rule 37(b)(2)(C), SCRPC⁶ by dismissing his action against all Respondents for his repeated refusal to comply with the rules of discovery, thereby depriving all Respondents of the information necessary to formulate a defense.

Furthermore, because the Lower Court found there to be insufficient evidence that the assets were non-probate and therefore it lacked subject matter jurisdiction over the action, Judge Lee's dismissal⁷ of the case against all Respondents was proper as

⁵ Under Schaefer v. Family Medicine Centers of South Carolina, LLC, Dist. Court, D. South Carolina 2019, the Fourth Circuit explains of Common Interest privilege that "[w]hether an action is ongoing or contemplated, whether the jointly interested persons are defendants or plaintiffs, and whether the litigation or potential litigation is civil or criminal, the rationale for the joint defense rule remains unchanged: persons who share a common interest in litigation should be able to communicate with their respective attorneys and with each other to more effectively prosecute or defend their claims.

⁶ Rule 37(b)(2)(C), SCRPC provides that the court may issue sanctions against a party for that party's failure to obey a court to provide or permit discovery, to include ... dismissing the action or proceeding.

⁷ Rule 12(h)(3), SCRPC states that "[w]henever it appears by suggestion of the parties

the action could not have been maintained against any of the Respondents and Respondent would argue that this claim is frivolous pursuant to Rule 269, SCACR.

- C. THE LOWER COURT APPLIED THE CORRECT LEGAL STANDARD TO THE RELEVANT CASE FACTS, WHICH RESULTED IN PROPERLY ISSUING ITS ORDER OF DISMISSAL OF APPELLANT'S CASE BECAUSE A CASE INVOLVING THE SAME PARTIES AND SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME SUBJECT MATTER IS ALREADY PENDING BEFORE THE PROBATE COURT.

Appellant is focused on alleging that potential factual errors in the record related to the background of the case should be considered in assessing whether the correct legal standard was used in dismissing his case. Whether or not there may be any errors in the record as to the factual background of the case is irrelevant to the legal standard applied in granting Respondent's Motion to Dismiss as the grounds for the dismissal were rooted in the rules of civil procedure.

As is his right, Appellant chose to proceed Pro Se rather than retaining an attorney qualified to provide proper legal guidance to pursue his claims. As such, Appellant's case was dismissed by the trial court on July 9, 2019 for lack of subject matter jurisdiction resulting from his failure to follow proper civil procedure. More specifically, Appellant failed to make a motion to remove the existing Probate Court action to the Circuit Court to address the issues he raised over presumed probate assets, and instead he filed a new action in the Circuit Court. (R 1, p.3). A review of the case by Judge Lee showed that Appellant failed to provide sufficient evidence to the

or otherwise that the court lacks jurisdiction of the subject matter, the court shall dismiss the action."

Lower Court that the assets complained of were non-probate. As such, the Lower Court determined that it lacked proper subject matter jurisdiction to make any determination as to probate assets. Lack of subject matter jurisdiction may not be waived, even by consent of the parties. Anderson v. Anderson, 299 S.C. 110, 382 SE 2d 897 (1989)⁸.

In part, the trial court's ruling is a result of Appellant's own failure to respond to discovery as ordered. Appellant was first served with discovery requests on December 7, 2017, to which he failed to respond. He then claimed during a hearing on March 18, 2019 that he never received interrogatories served upon him by Respondent, Paquita Mosley. It was noted during that hearing that Appellant made documents available for copying and inspection at his home, while Respondents' attorney pointed out the effort would be futile without receiving Appellant's Answers to Interrogatories to point them toward the documentation relevant to Appellant's claims (R 3, p. 6, L. 6-24). Appellant was again ordered to provide his Answers to Interrogatories within 30 days of receipt of another copy, and to provide his Responses to Requests For Production within 60 days of that hearing. Again, Appellant refused to comply with the court's order.

The final Order of Dismissal by Judge Lee cited the reason for granting Respondent's Motion to Dismiss as Appellant's claims arising from substantially the same claim as the Probate Court action between the same parties. This raises the legal doctrine of Res Judicata⁹ barring Appellant from re-litigating the same issues he raised

⁸ Father and one son ran a business together on a piece of property inherited by all children but in which father held a life estate. Once the father passed away, the land became a probate asset to be divided among all children. Some of the heirs filed a partition action in the Circuit Court to divide and sell the land. The Circuit Court relinquished certain portions of the action dealing with father's estate to the Probate Court based on subject matter jurisdiction.

⁹ Whitt v. Seterus, Inc., Dist. Court, D. South Carolina 2018. Res Judicata requires that "(1) the prior judgment was final and on the merits, and rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction; (2) the parties are identical, or in privity, in the two actions; and (3) the claims in the second matter are based upon the same cause of

in the Lower Court.

Furthermore, the trial court's ruling properly placed subject matter jurisdiction into the hands of the Probate Court. The South Carolina Probate Code confers exclusive original jurisdiction to the Probate Court over all subject matter relating to estates of decedents. S.C. Code Ann. § 62-1-302 (1987). As Appellant failed to provide sufficient evidence that the estate property he complained of was non-probate, the Probate Court must maintain jurisdiction over the disposition of the estate assets, and Respondent would argue that this claim is frivolous pursuant to Rule 269, SCACR.

D. THE DOCTRINE OF RES JUDICATA DOES NOT BAR
RESPONDENT FROM FILING SUBSEQUENT MOTIONS TO
DISMISS BASED ON A LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER
JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE ISSUE OF SUBJECT MATTER
JURISDICTION CAN BE RAISED AT ANY TIME.

Appellant claims that each subsequent time a Respondent raised a Motion to Dismiss related to subject matter jurisdiction that Res Judicata should have attached barring them from doing so because it was the same claim between the same parties that had already been decided. However, questions concerning subject-matter jurisdiction may be raised at any time by either party or sua sponte by th[e] court (Episcopal Church In South Carolina v. Church Insurance Company of Vermont, Dist. Court, D. South Carolina 2019) because the acts of a court with respect to a matter as to which it has no jurisdiction are void. Brown v. State, 343 S.C. 342, 540 S.E.2d 846 (2001).

Further, for Res Judicata to attach, it requires that (1) the prior judgment was

action involved in the earlier proceeding."

final and on the merits, and rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction; (2) the parties are identical, or in privity, in the two actions; and (3) the claims in the second matter are based upon the same cause of action involved in the earlier proceeding." Whitt v. Seterus, Inc., Dist. Court, D. South Carolina 2018.

A ruling on a motion raised during the pendency of a case is not a final judgment in the case so therefore Res Judicata would not be applicable to barring a Motion to Dismiss for subject matter jurisdiction. While some of the parties in both the Lower Court and Probate Court matters are the same, the need to subsequently raise the issue of subject matter jurisdiction again was the result of Appellant's own willful failure to provide his discovery responses in compliance with the July 9, 2019 Order of the Lower Court.

Appellant's claim that Respondents' exercised their right to raise the issue of subject matter jurisdiction in an effort to engage in legal harassment of him is frivolous, without merit, and sanctionable under SC Code §15-36-10(A)(4)(a)(ii)-(iv) ¹⁰. A patently insubstantial complaint such as absolutely devoid of merit may be dismissed for lack of subject matter jurisdiction Additionally, Plaintiff's entire Complaint may be

¹⁰ (4) An attorney or pro se litigant participating in a civil or administrative action or defense may be sanctioned for:

- (a) filing a frivolous pleading, motion, or document if:
 - (i) the person has not read the frivolous pleading, motion, or document;
 - (ii) a reasonable attorney in the same circumstances would believe that under the facts, his claim or defense was clearly not warranted under existing law and that a good faith or reasonable argument did not exist for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law;
 - (iii) a reasonable attorney presented with the same circumstances would believe that the procurement, initiation, continuation, or defense of a civil cause was intended merely to harass or injure the other party; or
 - (iv) a reasonable attorney presented with the same circumstances would believe the pleading, motion, or document is frivolous, interposed for merely delay, or merely brought for any purpose other than securing proper discovery, joinder of parties, or adjudication of the claim or defense upon which the proceedings are based;

dismissed because it is factually frivolous. Johnson v. Apple Inc., Dist. Court, D. South Carolina 2017.

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